
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

September 16, 2019 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 

∗ Public comment will be permitted at the time of the discussion of the agenda items marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable 
to public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only 
after each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

    

  Pg # Presenter 

1. Call to Order ............................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ..................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..……….............  Mayor Root 
 A. August 19, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes  ................................................ 1  
    
4. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………...…………………………...............  Mayor Root 
    
5. Consent Agenda ......................................................................................................................  Town Manager 

 A. Monthly Tax Report ............................................................................................................ 
B. Tax Releases ....................................................................................................................... 
C. Ratification of Road Closure Ordinance:  Art in Autumn  ................................................... 
D. Set Public Hearing on Rezoning of Merrimon Avenue Property for 10/21/19 at 7pm ……. 
E. Set Public Hearing on Annexation Petition & Initial Consideration of Monticello Road 

Property for 10/21/19 at 7pm ............................................................................................ 
F. Budget Amendment – Pink Patch Project .......................................................................... 
G. Approval of Temporary Construction Easements for Waterline Extension Project ………… 

5 
7 
8 

10 
 

30 
42 
44 

 

    
6. Town Manager’s Report .........................................................................................................  Town Manager 
    
7. Discussion & Action Items   

 A. Ratification of First Due Size Up Interlocal Agreement * ................................................... 
B. Update on Study of High-Density Single Family Residential Development* ………………….. 
C. Participation in Water Regionalization Feasibility Study* ………………………………………….….. 
D. Quarterly Report: Public Works & Water  .......................................................................... 

74 
78 
85 
87 

Town Manager 
Planning Director 
Public Works Dir. 
Public Works Dir. 

    
    
8. Closed Session   
 A. N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3). To consult with an attorney … 

B. N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6).  To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, 
character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an 
individual public officer or employee ... 

  

    
19. Adjournment ………………………………………………………......…………………………………………….............  Mayor Root 

 

 



                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, August 19, 2019 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, August 19, 2019, at 7:00 
p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilmember Doug Jackson, and Councilmembers Dottie 
Sherrill, Jeffrey McKenna, Andrew Nagle and Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Town 
Clerk Derek Huninghake, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Police Chief Ron Davis, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works 
Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilmember Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilmember McKenna seconded and 
all voted in favor of the motion. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Vice Mayor Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes from July 15, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting and 
August 6, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting. Councilmember Sherrill seconded the motion and all voted in 
favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. Special Recognition: Doug Theroux 
Mayor Root, on behalf of Town Council, presented a plaque in special recognition to Doug Theroux for his 10 years 
of dedicated service to the Town of Weaverville. Mr. Theroux was the Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Board 
for the last five years.   
 

5. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows: 
Louis Accornero, 50 Highland Pointe Drive, thanked Council for everything that they do and addressed some 
comments that were made on social media about a Town Council member. Mr. Accornero acknowledged that these 
comments were ridiculous and wrong, and that this individual has helped improve and grow the Town of Weaverville.  
 

6. Consent Agenda 
Councilmember Sherrill moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Nagle seconded the motion 
and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the Consent Agenda.  
 
A. Tax Collector Charge and Order of Collection – Approved Resolution Setting the Bond Amount for the Tax 

Collector and Adopting the Order of Collection for the 2019-2020 Tax Year  

1



B. Board Appointments – Appointed Rachael Bronson as an alternate member on the Planning and Zoning Board 
to serve a three-year term beginning in Sept. 2019; Reappointed Peter Stanz as a regular member of the Planning 
and Zoning Board to serve a three-year term beginning in Sept. 2019; Moved John Chase from an alternate 
member to a regular member on the Planning and Zoning Board with a term to expire in Sept. 2020; Reappointed 
Paul Clauhs as a regular member of the Board of Adjustment to serve a three-year term beginning in Sept. 2019; 
Reappointed Gene Knoefel as an alternate member on the Board of Adjustment to serve a three-year term 
beginning in Sept. 2019; and Reappointed Warren Alcorn to the ABC Board to serve a three-year term beginning 
in Sept. 2019 and designated Rob Chason as the ABC Board Chairman.  

C. Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request for 0.3 Acre Strip on Monticello Road – Council adopted the 
Resolution Concerning the Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning submitted for the +/- 0.3 acre strip of land 
located along Monticello Road which directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the petition and the 
Planning and Zoning Board to review and make a recommendation on the request initial zoning of R-12..  

D. Approval of US Cellular Tower Lease – Approved Resolution Declaring Its Intent to Authorize a Lease Under 
NCGS §160A-272 

E. Budget Amendment: Re-appropriations – Approved Budget Amendment 
F. Employee Incentive Award Recommendation – Approved the Employee Incentive Award Submission 
G. Preliminary Plat Approval for 108 Church Street – Approved Preliminary Plat for 108 Church Street 

 
7. Town Manager’s Report 

Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including that 1) she has been working with 
a graphic designer on developing a new seal for the Town and would like their feedback on it; 2) the Saturday 
Summer Series Concert held on August 10 featuring Zoe & Cloyd was a huge success. It was nearly double the last 
one with approximately 175 attendees. The final concert of the year will be on Saturday, September 14; 3) Dry Ridge 
Museum will be moving their artifacts into the Town Hall on August 27 and will display two large display cases in 
the community room; 4) the Town was able to extend the contract with the paving company so now some other streets 
on the list will be completed; 5) the Community Center committee appointed by Town Council has met twice and has 
final drawings being developed in order to put the project out to bid; 6) she is actively involved with the Community 
Leadership Council TDA TMIP and sent out surveys for Weaverville residents to complete last week. They also held 
several public input sessions on August 15 and 16; 7) Curbside Recycling has increased their fee from $2.72 to $2.78; 
8) Town Council has a workshop on September 10 at 6pm at the Town Hall to discuss streets/road policies; 9) the 
Town will host the 911 Observance on Wednesday, September 11 at Lake Louise Park; 10) and lastly, in 
collaboration with North Buncombe High School, the Town of Weaverville will have an intern for the upcoming 
school semester. 
 

8. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Update on Greenway Project 
Doug Dearth updated Town Council on the Reems Creek Greenway Project that he has been working on with 
Buncombe County staff.  He noted that last year, Town Council approved the Interlocal Agreement with Buncombe 
County, which they approved in October 2018 to establish the partnership. The next steps were a Request for Proposal 
(RFP) was drafted in conjunction with the county and is in its final phase, and an agreement between Buncombe 
County and NCDOT was drafted and completed last month. Buncombe County has approved their budget amendment 
to provide funding, so the Town of Weaverville can submit their funds anytime. Before Town Council tonight for 
their approval is a Greenway Agreement with MSD that Public Works Director Dale Pennell established with MSD 
for approval of right-of-ways. 
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons made a motion to approve the Greenway Agreement with MSD and authorize the Mayor 
and staff to execute and deliver it to MSD. Councilmember McKenna seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0 
 
 
 

2



 
B. Update on Waterline Extension Project 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson gave Town Council a brief update on the Waterline Extension project and a forecast 
of the remaining steps in the project. She mentioned that since this is USDA financed it will be closely monitored. 
(Attached is a thorough timeline and projected action steps) The next step for Town Council to take is approval of the 
plans and specifications for the waterline extension project. The plans and specifications are quite lengthy so they are 
not attached to the agenda, however they are available for viewing at the Town Hall.  
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons made a motion to approve the Resolution Approving the Plans and Specifications of the 
Waterline Extension Project. Vice Mayor/Councilmember Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  
 
C. Code Amendment: Recreational Fishing Program at Lake Louise 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that for many years the Town has maintained Lake Louise as a fishing lake. 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell has been working with the NC Wildlife Commission on becoming a part of the 
Community Fishing Program, where they will restock the lake, but the Commission would like the Town of 
Weaverville to allow for catch and keep subject to the Commission’s limitations and any limitations that the Town 
might want to impose. Also, staff is in communication with the Commission concerning the possible installation of a 
fishing pier at Lake Louise to allow ADA accessible fishing opportunities.  Before Town Council tonight for approval 
is an ordinance amending Code Chapter 18 to repeal the “catch and release” regulation and allow “catch and keep” 
subject to limits established by the NC Wildlife Commission or the Town Manager.  
 
Councilmember McKenna mentioned that with allowing catch and keep, it would increase traffic and might change 
the character of the lake. Also, he wondered if the fishing pier would be scaled down to the size of Lake Louise.   
 
Vice Mayor/Councilmember Jackson noted that these types of piers are mostly expensed by the Wildlife Commission, 
since they get paid from the restoration fund.  
 
Public Comment: 
Tom Plaut, Lakeshore Drive, commented that by opening this type of fishing there is a concern about a big change in 
the quantity and character of the visitors to Lake Louise.  
 
Councilmember Sherrill made a motion to approve the Ordinance Amending Code Chapter 18. Councilmember Nagle 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  
 
D. Town Parks-Preservation for Public Recreational Purposes 
Mayor Root noted that this was put on the agenda due to Councilmember Nagle asking him about the legal 
protections to preserve Lake Louise and Main Street Nature Park for public recreation purposes. Basically, three votes 
on Town Council can change anything, so they wondered what the protections were for these properties.  
 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that in her opinion there are no enforceable restrictions in the deeds, so if Council 
decided to change the use, as long as it was for a public purpose they would be allowed to do so. From a legal 
standpoint, there is a duty of Council to use the property for public purposes, but if it is vacant unused property than 
statutes would allow it to be sold either with or without restrictions attached. The deed has no binding restrictions for 
park and recreational purposes, but Council could bind it legally through conservation easements or convey the 
property to a trust.  
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that if Council does decide to subject the property to a conservation easement, it 
would greatly restrict what we are able to do with it. 
 

3



Councilmember Nagle mentioned that he did bring this item up and he believes that the conservation easement can be 
written up however Council wants, so it can be legally binding to stay as parks forever. He doesn’t believe that a 
resolution needs to be passed tonight, but we need to look into getting those properties as parks permanently.  
 
Vice Mayor/Councilmember Jackson commented that we should hold a workshop on this issue, so that we can gather 
more information and resources. Also, we could invite the Southern Appalachian Conservancy and Lake Louise 
residents to get their input.  
 
Public Comment: 
Walt Thomson, 5 Birkdale Drive, mentioned that he was in this business and conservation easements can be written in 
various spectrums of grade with some parts being very strict and others fairly loose. This is very important because 
there is a lot of grant funding for conservation grades of land available.  
 
E. Quarterly Report: Police Department  
Police Chief Ron Davis presented the Weaverville Police Department Quarterly Report for May – July 2019. Chief 
Davis noted that there were 3,134 calls for service last quarter, which is an increase of 5.5% from the same quarter 
last year, 61 arrests, which is an decrease of 4.5% from same quarter last year, and 51 vehicle collisions with 11 
injuries and 1 fatality.  He also noted that the State Bureau of Investigation has adopted a new reporting standard 
called National Incident Base Reporting System (NIBRS) with a deadline of January 2021. The old system, Uniform 
Crime Report (UCR) lacked detailed information and wasn’t universally used by all agencies/states. He will be 
transitioning his report to the new NIBRS data. 
 
F. Quarterly Report: Fire Department 
Fire Chief Ted Williams presented the Weaverville Fire Departments Quarterly Report for May – Jul 2019. There 
were 506 calls this quarter with an average response time for all calls at 6:22 minutes, the increase is due to a large 
number of calls to the golf course area for a camp at Windy Gap, 26 child passenger safety seats were installed, 78 
commercial business inspections, and 8 fire prevention and education classes were held.  
 

9. Closed Session 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons  made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to 
consult with an attorney  and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the qualifications, competence, 
performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of employment of a public officer or 
employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge or grievance. Councilmember Sherrill seconded the motion 
and by a majority vote Council entered into closed session. 

 
[CLOSED SESSION] 

 
Councilmember Nagle  made the motion to exit closed session. Councilmember Sherrill seconded and all voted 
unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

10. Adjournment 
Councilmember Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilmember McKenna seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 10:15 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

4



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2019   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of                 
September 9, 2019. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

5



9/9/2019
Real Property: 783,958,380$        
Real Property Discoveries: -                           

Total Real Property:  783,958,380$      
Personal: 73,730,921             
Personal Discoveries: -                           

Total Personal: 73,730,921           
Public Utilities: -                         
Exemption: (9,154,474)           
Releases: -                         
Total Tax Value 848,534,827        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,979,042             
Personal Property: 280,177                
Public Utilities: -                           
Less Under $5 Adjustment (47)                           
Total Public Utilities: (47)                         
Exemption: (34,787)                 
Releases: -                       
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,224,386$          

Total Current Year Collections 185,580$              
% Collected 5.76%

Total Left to be Collected: 3,038,805$          

Prior Years Paid 0

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2019-20

6



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2019   

SUBJECT: Tax Releases 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve two tax releases for the 2019 personal property 
taxes. 

The first one is on the 2019 personal property bill on property previously located at 
46 Church Street owned by Matthew Pennell and which bears Town Tax Number 
P3025619.  The requested release is for $1,350.00 in value and $5.13 from the 2019 
tax levy and is due to the property being relocated out of the Town’s jurisdiction. 

The second one is for the 2019 business personal property taxes charged to 
Engaged Asheville LLC, which bears Town Tax Number P3029809. This property is 
requested to be released as the property is not within the Town’s jurisdiction. The 
requested release is for $48,789 in value and $185.40 from the 2019 tax levy. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action 
could be in the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the release of $1,350.00 in value from the personal 
property owned by Matthew Pennell bearing Town Tax Number 
P3025619, so that $5.13 can be released from the 2019 levy. 

I move to approve the release of $48,789.00 in value from the personal 
property owned by Engaged Asheville LLC bearing Town Tax Number 
P3029809, so that $185.40 can be released from the 2019 levy. 

 

7



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2019   

SUBJECT: Ratification of Road Closure Ordinance – Art in Autumn 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

In order to meet DOT’s road closure review deadline the Mayor was asked to sign 
the road closure ordinance for the Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival in advance of 
Town Council’s meeting this month. Town Council is asked to ratify the attached 
road closure ordinance for the event that is to be held on September 21, 2019. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Ratification of the attached road closure ordinance could be in the form of the 
following motion:  

I make a motion to ratify the attached road closure ordinance for the 2019 
Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival that is scheduled for September 21, 2019. 

 

8



Weaverville  
North Carolina 

 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE  

Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the 
annual Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival, that benefits the Weaverville and the North 
Buncombe community; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the 
Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival for the pleasure of its citizens; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the Weaverville Art in Autumn 
requires approximately two (2) hours to install signage, and also requires approximately one (1) 
hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of Weaverville recognizes that the detour route will be 
appropriately marked with signage and personnel at various locations to ensure the motoring 
public travels safely and without unnecessary delay. 
 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20-169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and 
times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 
 

 Weaverville Art in Autumn 
  

 Date:    September 21, 2019 
 

 Time:   5:00 am until 10:00 pm    
 

Road Closure: The portion of Main Street between Church Street and Brown 
Street will be closed and all traffic safely detoured around this 
area. 

  
 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and 
detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control.  
 
 
    Adopted this 26th day of August 2019 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Allan P. Root, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

9



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Monday, September 16, 2019 

Set Public Hearing on Rezoning of an Unaddressed Parcel on 
Merrimon Avenue from I-1 to R-12 for 10/21/19 at 7pm 

Planning Director 

Zoning Map Amendment Application; Planning and Zoning 
Board Recommendation; Staff Report 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an executed zoning map amendment application for an 
unaddressed parcel of land on Merrimon Avenue. The current zoning of the parcel is I-1 
and the application calls for a conversion to R-12. As the application proposes a change 
between two standard zoning districts, the proposed amendment is eligible to be heard 
first by the Planning and Zoning Board and no initial review by Town Council is required. 

This application was considered on the night of Tuesday, September 3 by the Planning and 
Zoning Board and the Board arrived, via a 4-1 vote, at the attached favorable 
recommendation.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, October, 21 
2019 at 7:00pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforementioned 
rezoning request.  The following motion could be used for this purpose:

I move that we set a public hearing on the proposed rezoning of the unaddressed
parcel of land on Merrimon Avenue bearing PIN 9742-03-2555 from I-1 to R-12 for October 
21, 2019, at 7pm or as soon thereafter as Town Council can reach the matter.

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

On Tuesday, September 3, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and offered a positive 
recommendation via a vote of 4-1 to Town Council a proposed rezoning from I-1 to R-12 of a property 
commonly known as an unaddressed parcel on Merrimon Avenue, 9742-03-2555. 

It has been found that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan in 
that the plan calls for a balance of residential uses and the area in which the property is located is 
identified for residential use on the future land use map. Residential use is defined within the future 
land use map use category descriptions as follows: 

Surrounding the downtown core are primarily single family residential neighborhoods that 
contain historic bungalows and arts and craft style homes. Scattered within these areas are 
several historic churches and new residential construction. Other residential areas include the 
Reems Creek Golf Course, Reems Creek Villages, Hamburg Mountain, Woodland Hills and 
more dense residential developments such as Creekside Village, Hamburg Crossing and 
Kyfields. Future residential areas are defined on the Future Land Use Map as areas that 
support further residential construction and the character of these areas can be respected by 
observing the dimensional standards of the zoning district in which they are located.  

The Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to 
the desire of the proposed property owner to develop the property for multifamily residential 
purposes and finding that adjacent and nearby parcels of land within Creekside Village and Waters 
Edge are currently being used for a like purpose speaking to the character of the area.   

_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board 

17



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 1 of 7 

Introduction to the Property 

The subject parcel consists of 11.21 acres as shown on Buncombe County tax records and a zoning map 
amendment from I-1 to R-12 is requested. The property may be found along Merrimon Avenue 
between the intersections of Merrimon / Banks Town / Lakeshore to the north and Merrimon / Aiken to 
the south. The property also lies in close proximity to Lake Louise Park found less than one tenth of a 
mile to the north. 

Zoning Analysis 

The Town may expect up to 135 dwelling units based solely upon the underlying acreage which would 
be permitted with standards by staff as per the table of uses and section 36-139 should the zoning 
change be achieved. Said standards are as follows. 

Sec. 36-139. - Dwelling—Multifamily (more than 4 units/building). 

(a) Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of
Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 units/building) as defined in section 36-5 except that such
requirements are hereby modified to provide the following:

(1) All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall.
(2) Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light
trespass on to adjoining residential properties.
(3) The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town's zoning
administrator prior to installation.

18



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 2 of 7 

(b) All containment devices for trash and recyclables (including but not limited to compactors,
dumpsters, roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard) shall be placed in the side or rear yards only
and located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All
containment areas shall meet the following standards:

(1) All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter.
(2) Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster.
(3) Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such as a
fence, wall, or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the design and
materials of the principal building.
(4) Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the Buncombe
County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A concrete apron shall also
extend from the pad for support and access.
(5) Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security.
(6) Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings
and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible to
service vehicles.
(7) Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of chapter 36.

(c) Maximum Number of Units per Building - No more than 24 units per building are permitted.

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (pg. 25 and A-2) and future land use map use 
categories descriptions (pg. A-3). Here it is found that the subject property is within an area designated 
for future residential development and such areas are defined as follows: 

Residential 
Surrounding the downtown core are primarily single family residential neighborhoods that contain 
historic bungalows and arts and craft style homes. Scattered within these areas are several historic 
churches and new residential construction. Other residential areas include the Reems Creek Golf Course, 
Reems Creek Villages, Hamburg Mountain, Woodland Hills and more dense residential developments 
such as Creekside Village, Hamburg Crossing and Kyfields. Future residential areas are defined on the 
Future Land Use Map as areas that support further residential construction and the character of these 
areas can be respected by observing the dimensional standards of the zoning district in which they are 
located.  

19



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 3 of 7 

Here it is important to consider the “character” of the area as made requisite from the previously 
mentioned description. It should be noted that multi-family housing is currently established on an 
adjacent property at Creekside Village and an additional nearby property commonly known as Waters 
Edge found less than one tenth of a mile north near the intersection of Merrimon Avenue and Banks 
Town Road. Other properties in the immediate vicinity are currently being used for industrial purposes. 

Previous recommendations by the Planning and Zoning Board and decisions made by Town Council has 
given staff the impression that density is seen as a large contributing factor in determining the 
compatibility of character with a proposed project and it’s immediate surroundings. Please see the 
following information on the two aforementioned multi-family projects for your consideration 

Creekside Village (Phase 1) Water’s Edge 
Acres: +/- 7.5 +/- 2 
Units: 55 18 
Units per Acre: 7.33 9 

When solely considering the adopted future land use map and future land use map use category 
descriptions, it is the opinion of staff that a proposed rezoning to any residential district would be 
supported by the CLUP. Whether the density desired by this particular proposal is at odds with the 
“character” of the area is a determination to be made by the appointed and elected officials of the 
Town.   

20



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 4 of 7 

Found on page 17 of the CLUP is the stated goal of “consider ways to address housing affordability.” Said 
goal was established upon finding the current median housing cost of $335,000 for housing stock within 
the jurisdiction which represented a 39% increase in just two years following a reevaluation of property 
values by the County in 2017. Both the community and Town Council have expressed a concern that this 
figure may prove to be problematic for those operating with a limited income to remain or become a 
member of our community. Should it be found that these units are to be sold or leased at a value under 
the current median housing value, this stated goal would be addressed. 

Found on pages 6 and 22 of the CLUP is the stated goal of “define and consider ways to achieve 
balanced residential development.” On the fact sheet, found on page A-13 within the CLUP, you will find 
numbers illustrating the percentage of both single family and multifamily housing units of the total 
housing stock within the jurisdiction. These values were found to be substantially similar between the 
years of 2010 and 2016. However, between 2016 and a 2018 estimated figure we find the percentage of 
single family residential units fall by 5% and multifamily residential units rise by the same 5% to the 
current estimate of 80% single family and 19% multifamily with the remainder represented by mobile 
homes. This change is reflective of two apartment complexes, one constructed and occupied and one 
with plans approved, which were annexed into town during that time. If we take into account the total 
units permitted on this parcel under R-12 zoning and 135 Monticello Road which was recently annexed 
into town with R-12 zoning, we may expect to see as many as 369 multifamily residential units should 
the desired zoning for this subject property be achieved. Adding this figure to our housing stock would 
bring a future iteration of our ratio of single family residential housing stock to that of multifamily to 
69% to 31% respectively with mobile homes remaining at less than 1%. Finding this balance is largely a 
policy question but staff has prepared these figures should they assist in this determination. 

Found on page 26 of the CLUP is the stated goal of “consult additional approved plans for plan 
consistency review.” Statements and/or additional information related to those plans are as follows. 

Strategic Plan Compliance 

Within the Town’s Strategic Plan (SP), a summary of which is found on page A-7 within the CLUP, a 
parallel sentiment toward fostering a diversity of housing opportunities is found. Town Council 
identified “affordable housing – mixed income housing, additional housing opportunities” within a list of 
3-5 year visioning found on page 3 of the SP. Additionally, a similar statement is made within the list of
15-20 year visioning found on page 4 of the SP and reads as follows, “self-sustaining, vibrant community
with a mix of young, old, long-term and new residents with a common bond of living in a safe space that
meets their needs.” It is found within the CLUP that the Town’s median age was the eldest at 52.6 years
of age and home values the highest at $335,000 of all jurisdictions studied in both Buncombe and

21



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 5 of 7 

Madison Counties. One could reason that additional leased or purchased housing stock, at likely below 
the stated median value, could invite a younger population to become invested in the Town hence 
forwarding the stated visions adopted by Town Council. 

Reems Creek Greenway Feasibility Study Compliance 

Within the Town’s Reems Creek Greenway Feasibility Study (RCGFS) is a map illustrating a conceptual 
plan with corridor options. Said map may be found on page A-8 of the CLUP. Here it is found that a 
portion of both options 2B and 2C of the proposed greenway route spanning from the Merrimon 
Avenue / Reems Creek bridge to the intersection of Banks Town and Reems Creek Roads are shown on 
the subject property. Option 2B follows the banks of Reems Creek while option 2C appears to follow the 
100 year floodplain in which is contained the floodway. Within the floodway, no development is allowed 
(any man made change) while limited development may occur within areas within the floodplain but 
outside the floodway provided a floodplain development permit is acquired which would establish that 
certain conditions are met. Even infrastructure, whether above or below ground, would require an 
engineer’s No Rise study or a Conditional Letter of Map Revision through FEMA. All of this is a rather 
long winded way of suggesting that it is incredibly unlikely for any development to occur on the subject 
property which would hinder either route of the proposed greenway through the property. 

Also within the RCGFS, the subject parcel is identified as “future potential connection to greenway for 
higher density residential.”  

Given these two variables, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not conflict with 
the Town’s adopted RCGFS. 

Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

The use of the subject property will largely not affect five of the six recommendations established by the 
Town’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PRMP). These recommendations may be found on page A-10 
of the CLUP with further exploration of these recommendations on the following pages A-11 and 12. 
Here it is found that the PRMP requires the continued support of greenways. The PRMP also make the 
finding that the Reems Creek Greenway “will provide enhanced bike and pedestrian access to Lake 
Louise Park and provide added recreational amenities for residents.” 

Given staff’s opinion that the proposed rezoning would not conflict with the Town’s adopted RCGFS, it is 
also found the proposed rezoning would not conflict with the Town’s adopted PRMP. 

22



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 6 of 7 

Uses Permitted Within the Current Zoning District: I-1 

When the possibility of municipally initiated rezonings was explored in research conducted during the 
update of the CLUP, this was one of the parcel(s) contemplated. Staff’s reasoning for this was largely 
based upon the parcel’s proximity to Lake Louise and the uses afforded to the property by the I-1 zoning 
district. As we explore the possibility of a zoning change we should also familiarize ourselves with the 
type and scope of development which can occur under current conditions within the aforementioned I-1 
zoning district.   

The I-1 zoning district is the most permissive when considering the number and intensity of uses 
allowed. A wide array of uses found within the office/service; retail/restaurant; 
entertainment/recreation; manufacturing/wholesale/storage; civic/institutional; utilities; and 
miscellaneous uses within the table of uses are permitted through various means while uses permitted 
within the proposed R-12 district are mostly narrowed to multi-family residential and limited uses within 
the entertainment/recreation and civic institutional portions.   

In short, a manufacturing or warehousing facility is likely to be permitted by right under current zoning 
regulation applicable to the property. It is fair to contemplate whether a multifamily residential complex 
represents a higher and better use or a less obtrusive use given the proximity to Lake Louise and the 
future Reems Creek Greenway. 

Other Considerations 

The 2016 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.12 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the theoretical 135 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 286 people should Town Council grant the desired R-12 Zoning 
District. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Staff has analyzed state law and court decisions related to spot zoning and have made a determination 
that this proposed rezoning would not qualify as such based upon the size of the tract, compatibility 
with the CLUP, balancing the benefits and detriments to anyone who may be effected by the zoning 
change and the relationship of uses to adjacent parcels of land. Staff is prepared to speak to this issue 
further should it be desired.     
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
This being the first time in many years the Town is approached with a land use decision regarding a 
property with portions of same within the floodplain or floodway, it is important to establish that 

23



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Unaddressed Merrimon from I-1 to R-12 

Prepared August 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Reems Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study; Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

Page 7 of 7 

through an local governmental agreement Buncombe County administers the Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance as per the following section of code. 

Sec. 13-75. - Designation of floodplain administrator. 

Pursuant to G.S. 143-215.57(b), the town council of the town has, by resolution, agreed that the 
county, through its floodplain administrator, shall regulate the floodplain within the town's corporate limits 
and extraterritorial jurisdiction by the administration, implementation and enforcement of this chapter.  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

• Plan Consistency Review Checklist may be found on the following page.
• Staff has also gathered reports from the Fire, Police and Public Works Departments to ensure

that the “town provide quality services to the proposed land use to the same extent and under
existing policies” made requisite by the newly adopted CLUP.

24



CHECKLIST FOR:  Proposed Rezoning: Unaddressed Merrimon Avenue
FINDING OF PLAN CONSISTENCY:    ☐ YES   ☐ NO ☐ CONDITIONS IMPOSED

ALIGNMENT WITH FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

Does the proposed land use decision provide for 
better alignment with the Future Land Use Map? 
Current Land Use: 
Current Zoning District: 
Future Land Use: 

CONSISTENCY WITH PLAN PRIORITIES 

Is the proposed land use decision consistent with 
Plan Priorities? 

Can the Town provide quality services to the 
proposed land use to the same extent and 
under existing policies? 
Does the land use preserve and/or enhance 
the Town’s unique and vibrant downtown? 
Does the land use respect the general 
character of the residential area? 
Does the land use provide an opportunity for 
balanced residential development? 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR PROPERTIES IN THE 
R-1 AND C-1 DISTRICTS

Is the proposed land use development generally 
consistent with the character of the areas 
surrounding the property? 
Is the land use properly planned so as to mitigate 
the site-specific impact on the surrounding area? 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR CONDITIONAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS 

Is the land use properly planned so as to mitigate 
the site-specific impact on the surrounding area? 
Can conditions be imposed to mitigate impact in 
order to achieve consistency? 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR MAP AMENDMENTS 

If the property is within an area identified for 
potential re-zoning, is the proposed land use 
consistent with the proposed zoning district?  
Does the proposed land use provide an opportunity 
to transition the property from a dormant to active 
use or to a higher and better use of the property? 
If the property is within any of the following study 
areas, is the proposed land use consistent with the 
plans/stated goals for the area? 
☐ Downtown Area 
☐ North Main Street/”Five Points” Area 
☐ Monticello Road Corridor 
☐ Reems Creek Road Corridor 

CONSISTENCY WITH ADDITIONAL APPROVED PLANS 

Is the proposed land use decision consistent with 
additional approved plans? 

REEMS CREEK GREENWAY MASTER PLAN 
Is the property shown on the Greenway 
Study as being in the greenway area? 
Is the proposed land use consistent with 
the Greenway Study? 
Can conditions be imposed for 
consistency with the Greenway Study? 

PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 
Is the property shown on a Parks/Rec 
Master Plan as being within a proposed 
future park/recreational area? 
Is the proposed land use consistent with 
Parks/Rec Master Plan? 
Can conditions be imposed for 
consistency with Parks/Rec Master Plan? 

STREET MASTER PLAN 
Is the property shown on a Street Master 
Plan as future public street area? 
Is proposed land use consistent with 
Street Master Plan? 
Can conditions be imposed for 
consistency with Street Master Plan? 

SIDEWALK MASTER PLAN 
Is the property shown on a Sidewalk 
Master Plan as a future sidewalk area? 
Is the proposed land use consistent with 
the Sidewalk Master Plan? 
Can conditions be imposed for 
consistency with Sidewalk Master Plan? 

WATER MASTER PLAN 
Is the property shown on a Water Master 
Plan as a future water system expansion 
area? 
Is the proposed land use consistent with 
the Water Master Plan? 
Can conditions be imposed for 
consistency with Water Master Plan? 

Open Use / Undeveloped
I-1: Light Industrial

Residential

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

25

jeller
Highlight



From: Ted Williams
To: James Eller; Dale Pennell; Ron Davis
Cc: Selena Coffey; Jennifer Jackson
Subject: RE: Unaddressed Merrimon Rezoning Application
Date: Wednesday, August 21, 2019 1:15:29 PM

James

As previous we are already providing service to this parcel. This parcel is currently a pasture with no
needed responses in the past 5 years and a 135 unit complex would definitely increase our call
volume but not to a degree that we would not be able to provide service at  the same level we
always do. I again just add that the North Buncombe fire tax would be eliminated for the parcel once
annexed and those monies are part of our total budget.

Let me know if you need additional.

Ted Williams
Fire Chief
Weaverville Fire Department
(828)645-3500 ext. 1801
(828)484-7031 Direct
(828)658-9868 Fax
(828)545-2823 Cell

From: James Eller <jeller@weavervillenc.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2019 12:41 PM
To: Dale Pennell <dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org>; Ron Davis <rdavis@weavervillenc.org>; Ted
Williams <twilliams@weavervillefd.org>
Cc: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>; Jennifer Jackson <jjackson@weavervillenc.org>
Subject: Unaddressed Merrimon Rezoning Application

All,

Yesterday afternoon I received an application to rezone an unaddressed parcel on Merrimon Avenue
(9742-03-2555) near the intersection with Banks Town Road. The application proposes a change to
R-12 which supports multifamily residential at a density of up to 12 units per acre.

Included with the recently adopted comprehensive land use plan is a requisite finding that the “town
provide quality services to the proposed land use to the same extent and under existing policies.”
 We’ve preformed this exercise before when considering voluntary annexations and attached you
will find reports previously submitted for a similar project on Monticello Road should that be able to
be repurposed for this instance.

26

mailto:TWilliams@weavervillefd.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:rdavis@weavervillenc.org
mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


  Weaverville Police Department 

 30 South Main Street 
     Post Office Box 338 

     Weaverville, NC 28787 

James, 

In response to your request regarding the possible rezoning of parcel 9742-03-2555 on Merrimon Avenue near 
Banks Town Road.  A cost impact study was completed as well as a site survey.   

It’s a little problematic to forecast impact(s) this site might have since there’s not a set road design or structure 
layout etc.  But just based on the information provided in a maximum density scenario, I feel adequate policing of 
this area could be achieved at a minimal cost to the police department as it relates to law enforcement. 

We’re already providing police services in and around this area.  If the number of permitted units were to be as 
stated I would of course anticipate nuisance-type issues such as noise complaints, etc. and therefore an increased 
number of calls for service much like what has been encountered at Weaver View Circle.  But based on the 
Weaver View Circle model, I do not anticipate calls for service that would be of a volume to significantly impact the 
police department’s daily operations.    

I have estimated fuel, maintenance and additional man hours however this does not consider other calls for 
service which might arise outside the scope of “routine patrol” while providing an adequate police presence.   

Fuel: $ 300.00 

Maintenance: $ 150.00 

Additional man hours: 90 per year 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Respectfully, 

Ron Davis 
Chief 

27



From: Dale Pennell
To: James Eller
Cc: Selena Coffey; Jennifer Jackson; Dale Pennell; Ron Davis; Ted Williams
Subject: RE: Unaddressed Merrimon Rezoning Application
Date: Monday, August 26, 2019 5:09:37 PM

James,

Based on our experience with the Hawthorne Apartments on Monticello Road, we assume the
following effects for the various Divisions of the Public Works Department for the proposed 135 unit
apartment project on the southeast corner of the intersection of Merrimon Avenue and Reems
Creek:

Streets:                No additional costs to PW are expected since the streets will be privately owned
and maintained; the town will have no responsibility for future repairs or snow
plowing.  Residents from these apartments might use our streets and sidewalks to
visit downtown businesses, churches, or the homes of other citizens, but we cannot
evaluate how this usage could be quantified or measured or estimated.

Sanitation:          We will not be collecting garbage or recycling within the development, nor will we
be picking up brush, leaves, or yard debris; therefore, no additional costs for PW.

Recreation:        I hope any residents of the 135 units will choose to use our parks, especially their
children.  We would anticipate no additional costs to the town for mowing or
maintenance outside of the normal wear and tear on our facilities.

Water:  135 units x 400 gallons per day (GPD) = 54,000 gallons of required daily water
allocation for the development; however the actual usage will probably be closer to
13,500 GPD based on recent historical trends.  Based on our most recent figures, we
now produce an average of 566,000 GPD with additional future commitments of
approximately 439,000 GPD, totaling 1,005,000 GPD with a total availability capacity
of 1,500,000 GPD; therefore the proposed project can be easily added to our current
water production.  There will be an additional cost to produce this water and
distribute it to the customer; however, our water rates generally cover this cost,
especially when it involves only 1 domestic meter for monthly reading and
occasional maintenance.  The maintenance for the fire meter and piping is minimal,
with other similar installations having little or no maintenance issues in the past.

In summary, the addition of the proposed Stump Dump project will have minimal effect on the
operations of the PW Department and I would anticipate little additional costs to the department.

If you need additional information or have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

Dale Pennell, PE, PLS
Public Works Director

28

mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:rdavis@weavervillenc.org
mailto:TWilliams@weavervillefd.org


Town of Weaverville
15 Quarry Road
Weaverville, NC  28787
828-645-0606 Office
828-231-7050 Cell

From: James Eller 
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2019 12:41 PM
To: Dale Pennell; Ron Davis; Ted Williams
Cc: Selena Coffey; Jennifer Jackson
Subject: Unaddressed Merrimon Rezoning Application

All,

Yesterday afternoon I received an application to rezone an unaddressed parcel on Merrimon Avenue
(9742-03-2555) near the intersection with Banks Town Road. The application proposes a change to
R-12 which supports multifamily residential at a density of up to 12 units per acre.

Included with the recently adopted comprehensive land use plan is a requisite finding that the “town
provide quality services to the proposed land use to the same extent and under existing policies.”
 We’ve preformed this exercise before when considering voluntary annexations and attached you
will find reports previously submitted for a similar project on Monticello Road should that be able to
be repurposed for this instance.

If you could please provide an updated assessment based upon the following information (by next
Wednesday in order to be included in the P&Z packet) it would be greatly appreciated.

Unaddressed Merrimon Avenue
9742-03-2555
Acres:   11.21
Permitted units under desired zoning district: 135

Please feel free to contact me if I may provide any additional information or be of any assistance in
your assessments. Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.

James W. Eller, NCAZO
Planning Director
Town of Weaverville

29



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, September 16, 2019 

Set Public Hearing on the Annexation Petition and Initial 
Zoning of R-12 for Unaddressed Parcel on Monticello Road 
for 10/21/19 at 7pm 

Town Attorney / Planning Director 

Voluntary Annexation Petition; Zoning Map Amendment 
Application; Certificate of Sufficiency; Planning and Zoning 
Board Recommendation 

Description: 

During the August 19 meeting of Council the Town Clerk was instructed to investigate the 
eligibility of a proposed annexation and the Planning and Zoning Board was instructed to 
examine the compliance with the Town’s adopted comprehensive land use plan with a 
desired initial zoning of R-12. These actions have occurred and attached you will find 
documentation reflective of same.    

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, October, 21 
2019 at 7:00pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforementioned 
proposed voluntary annexation petition and initial zoning request. The following motion 
would be appropriate:

I move that we set a public hearing on the proposed voluntary annexation of the +/-0.3 acre 
parcel of land on Monticello Road bearing PIN 9733-71-3521 and its initial zoning to R-12 
for October 21, 2019, at 7pm or as soon thereafter as Town Council can reach the matter.

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Buncombe County

NCCGIA

July 3, 2019
0 0.075 0.150.0375 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

 
 

39



The Town of 

WeavervilleN O R T H   C A R O L I N A  
CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY OF 
ANNEXATION PETITION 2019-2  

CREST RESIDENTIAL, LLC, PROPERTY AT 
UNADDRESSED MONTICELLO ROAD 

TO THE WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL: I, Derek Huninghake, Weaverville Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the Voluntary Annexation Petition of Crest Residential, LLC, (Petition No. 2019-2) and have found as a fact that the Petition is signed by all the owners of real property lying in the area described therein and that the area to be annexed is contiguous to the Town's primary boundary. Therefore, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes § 160A-31, et seq., I certify that the Petition is valid and sufficient for the voluntary annexation of a contiguous area pursuant to said § 160A-31 et seq., of the North Carolina General Statutes. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of Weaverville, this the 21st day of August, 2019. 

______________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

30 South Main Street • Weaverville, NC 28787 (PO Box 338) 
(828) 645-7116 • Fax (828) 645-4776www.weavervillenc.org

40



 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, September 3, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously 
recommended to Town Council a proposed initial zoning of R-12 for the property commonly known as 
an unaddressed parcel on Monticello Road, 9733-71-3521. 
 
It has been found that the proposed initial zoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan 
in that the plan calls for a balance of residential uses and the area in which the property is located is 
identified for mixed use on the future land use map. Mixed use is defined within the future land use 
map use category descriptions as follows: 
 

Areas shown as mixed use on the Future Land Use Map are where the town has experienced a 
variety of development pressures ranging from high density single family residential 
development and multifamily residential development to local retail establishments and 
restaurants. These areas include Monticello Road, North Buncombe School Road and Reems 
Creek Road. There is a belief that these particular developments can coexist in such 
environments and that they will continue to increase in these areas due to the transportation 
and utility infrastructure present.   

 
The Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to 
the desire of the proposed property owner to further develop the property for multifamily residential 
purposes and finding that adjacent parcels of land are zoned R-12 creating contiguity of zoning 
districts.  
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _____________________________________________________________________ __________________________________

41



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  September 16, 2019 

Subject: Budget Amendment – Pink Patch Project  

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Budget Amendment Form  

 

Description: 

For the current fiscal year, the Town has collected $260 in Pink Patch Project donations as 

of 9/10/2019.   

Town Council is asked to approve a budget amendment to add the following revenue and 

expenditure items to the 2019-2020 Budget: 

Police Department 

   010-004-300-09029  (Pink Patch Project - Revenue)  $260 

   010-430-431-26609  (Pink Patch Project - Expenditure)  $260 

 

 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 

 

42



 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-430-431-26609  Pink Patch Project (Expenditure)  $260.00 
     
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-004-300-09029  Pink Patch Project (Revenue)  $260.00 
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.  Pink Patch 
Project donations collected from July 2019 – Sept 2019 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

 

43



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2019   

SUBJECT: Approval of Temporary Construction Easements for the 
Waterline Extension Project 

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Temporary Constructions Easements 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff has been working on identifying all of the properties that may be affected by 
the Town’s Waterline Extension Project. Fortunately all of the infrastructure will be 
constructed within DOT’s rights-of-way pursuant to an encroachment agreement 
that the Town understands if forthcoming. This means that the Town will not be 
required to purchase any property or secure any permanent easements for the 
project. There are, however, seven (7) properties that the Town will be seeking 
temporary construction easements from in order to handle the borings and other 
construction related activity during the installation of the waterline.  

Town Council is asked to approve the attached temporary construction easements 
subject to any minor modifications that may be necessary to secure the conveyance 
of these easements. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is asked to consider the following motion: 

I move that we approve the temporary construction easements, authorize the 
Town Manager, Public Works Director and Town Attorney to make minor 
modifications to the easements as may be necessary to secure such easements, 
and to authorize the Mayor, Town Clerk, and Finance Officer to execute same. 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 16, 2019  

SUBJECT:  Ratification of Amended and Restated Interlocal 
Agreement – Fire Departments and First Due Size-Up 
Program  

PRESENTER:  Town Manager/Fire Chief 

ATTACHMENTS:  Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

On April 15, 2019, Town Council approved an interlocal agreement that allowed the 
Town to serve as a purchasing agent to secure the First Due Size-Up program for the 
various fire departments within the County. The First Due Size-Up program is a 
dispatch and pre-plan tool that allows emergency responders to have as much 
information as possible about the location they are responding to. The program 
pulls information from many different data bases such as GIS, tax records, permits 
and inspections, fire department pre-plans and many more to create a picture of the 
location with drawings, maps and pertinent information prior to arrival.  

This program was implemented and the fire departments would like to renew the 
program for an additional year in the hope that Buncombe County will then 
appropriate funds to cover the cost of the program.  

Once again the Town was asked to be the purchasing agent, and given that all of the 
departments reimbursed the Town very promptly and responsively, the Town 
agreed.  

The cost of the program is $2,560.00 for each of the 18 departments (including the 
Weaverville Fire Department) for an additional year of the program, and the Town 
through the attached interlocal agreement, agreed to be the purchasing agent to 
continue this program.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to ratify the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement. 

74



75



76



By signing below, you acknowledge that you have the authority to enter into this 

Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement on behalf of your department and/or non

profit corporation under which your department operates and to obligate your department 

to the terms contained herein: 

FAIRVIEWFIRE DEPARTMENT: :f --::>--· �

BLACK MOUNTAIN FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

WEST BUNCOMBE FIRE DEPARTME� � 

SWANNANOA FIRE DEPARTMENT: � µf 
WEAVERVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT:� t<J,U __ __, 

REYNOLDS FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

ENKA FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

RICEVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

UPPER HOMINY FIRE DEPARTME 

REEMS CREEK FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

BARNARDSVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT: f)� 

JUPITERFIRE DEPARTMENT: ;� iJ � 
LEICESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT: � / /J.

FRENCH BROAD FIRE DEPARTMENT: JJ?dJr-� 

WOODFIN FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

SKYLAND FIRE DEPARTMEN 

BROAD RIVER FIRE DEPARTMENT: 

GARREN CREEK FIRE DEPARTMENT: {Ji.. .-rt._;. 

77



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: September 16, 2019 

SUBJECT: Update on High Density Single Family Residential 
Development 

PRESENTER: Planning Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Consistent with a high priority goal identified in the adopted Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan, staff has been working on some regulations which would address high 
density single family residential development. On September 3, 2019, the Planning 
and Zoning Board began its study of the possible regulations and had good 
discussions on the topic. Staff and the Planning and Zoning Board reached a 
consensus that the creation of a new district is preferable to amending an existing 
residential district.  

In its work on this subject, staff has identified the following justifications for such a 
district: 

• Could add to a balance of residential development
• Could address the continued interest for this type of development
• Could provide an easier way to achieve this type of development

(currently a CZD is required)
• Could be of interest to both younger and older residents
• Could encourage more affordable, workforce-type housing options

If Town Council has a primary objective for a high density single family residential 
district it would be helpful to the Board’s continued discussions on the topic. It 
would also be helpful to know up front if Town Council is more inclined to modify 
an existing district as opposed to creating a new one. 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council discussion to provide early input is requested. 

78



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 1 of 6 

Town Council Priority 

Within the recently adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) Town Council prioritized 
each individual goal stated within said plan. “Consider land use regulation that provides for high 
density single family residential development” (pg.29) was given priority 1 (highest) and staff 
has chosen here to begin the work toward achieving the goals set forth in the CLUP.  

Analysis of Existing Conditions 

In order to begin analyzing the best way for the town to accomplish the stated goal of providing 
land use regulation that accommodates high density single family residential development, 
staff believes it prudent to observe the existing conditions within similar developments which 
were approved via a conditional zoning district or special use permit, which, to date, were the 
only ways for such a project to come to fruition.  

Analysis of Existing Conditions Related to High Density Single Family Residential Projects 
All Projects Shown Have Public Water and Sewer 

Lillie Farm Cove: North Main / Critter Trail 
Mean Lot Area: .1113 acres 4,848.23 sq.ft. 
Largeest Lot: .2 acres 8,698 sq.ft. 
Smallest Lot: .08 acres 3,672 sq.ft. 
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 45 ft. 
Setbacks: 25 front 6 sides 10 rear 

Lakeside Meadows: Merrimon / Brown 
Mean Lot Area: .1847 acres 8,045 sq.ft. 
Largest Lot: .289 acres 12,589 sq.ft. 
Smallest Lot: .134 acres 5,837 sq.ft. 
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 50 ft. 
Setbacks: 15 front 5 sides 10 rear 

79



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 2 of 6 

Creekside Village (Phase 3): Merrimon / Aiken 
Mean Lot Area: .1535 acres 6,688 sq.ft. 
Largest Lot: .203 acres 8,843 sq.ft. 
Smallest Lot: .13 acres 5,663 sq.ft 
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 60 ft. 
Setbacks: 10 front 5 sides 10 rear 

Weaver Village: Weaver / Weaver Village 
Mean Lot Area: .1222 acres 5,323 sq.ft. 
Largest Lot: .145 acres 6,316 sq. ft. 
Smallest Lot: .108 acres 4,7,04 sq. ft. 
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 60 ft. 
Setbacks: None: Site Specific Plan 

Partridge Berry: Reems Creek / Dogwood 
Mean Lot Area: .1669 acres 7,270 sq.ft. 
Largest Lot: .207 acres 9,017 sq.ft. 
Smallest Lot: .127 acres 5,532 sq. ft. 
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 50 ft. 
Setbacks: 15 front 5 sides 10 rear 

What these numbers indicate are lots which would not be permissible within any of the Town’s 
standard zoning districts, the approval of which would be an administrative decision, and 
processed through the Town’s subdivision review and approval procedures. Deficiencies include 
calculations related to lot area, lot width, setbacks and in some cases all three variables based 
upon the dimensional requirements of our residential districts.  

It is the belief and understanding of staff that it is the desire of Town Council for such 
conditions to exist where these developments could be treated as traditional subdivisions 
within a standard zoning district and subject to the aforementioned review process.  Here is 
where work begins on accomplishing one of the first prioritized stated goals of the CLUP. 

80



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 3 of 6 

How to Better Accommodate High Density Single Family Residential Development? 

Staff believes there are two options to accomplish the task at hand. Option 1: Create a new 
zoning district with dimensional requirements similar to the studied projects. Option 2: Amend 
the dimensional requirements of an existing zoning district with dimensional requirements 
similar to the studied projects. Each of these options comes with variables which may make it 
more or less likely for our stated goal to materialize.  

Option 1: New Zoning District 

Sec. 36-106. - Table of dimensional requirements. 

Proposed R-X District 

Zoning District R-2 R-3 R-12 R-X

Minimum Lot Area (sq. 
Ft.)  

7,500 1, 

2,3,4,7 
5,445 
1,2,3,4,7 7,500 4,7, 8 5,000 – 

8,000 

Minimum Lot Width(ft.) 75 75 75 50 

Minimum Front Yard 
(ft.)  

30 30 30 15-25 

Minimum Side Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Residential 

District  
10 6 10 6 10 6 5-10

Minimum Rear Yard 
(ft.)  

Abutting Residential 
District  

10 6 10 6 10 6 10 

81



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 4 of 6 

Height Limit (ft.) 35 35 
45 and no more than 3 

stories  
35 

(Option 2 Not Preferred as per the Consensus of the Planning and Zoning Board on 
September 3, 2019)  

Option 2: Amend Existing Zoning District 

Sec. 36-106. - Table of dimensional requirements. 

Proposed Amendment to R-2 District 

Zoning District R-2 R-3 R-12

Minimum Lot Area (sq. 
Ft.)  

5,000 

7,500 1, 

2,3,4,7 

5,445 
1,2,3,4,7 7,500 4,7, 8 

Minimum Lot Width(ft.) 
50 

75 
75 75 

Minimum Front Yard 
(ft.)  

15-25

30 
30 30 

Minimum Side Yard (ft.) 
Abutting Residential 

District  

5 

10 6 
10 6 10 6 

Minimum Rear Yard 
(ft.)  

Abutting Residential 
District  

10 6 10 6 10 6 

82



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 5 of 6 

Height Limit (ft.) 35 35 
45 and no more than 3 

stories  

3. 5,000 5,500 additional square feet for each additional dwelling unit when public water
and/or sewer is available.

Other Considerations 

• Due to statutory limitations, a municipality cannot totally prohibit manufactured
housing (factory built using national HUD building code) from the jurisdiction. The R-3
zoning district within the Town exists for this purpose. Therefore, the possible
amendment of the R-3 zoning district to accommodate high density single family
residential will have to take this into consideration. For instance, a subdivision is
approved for a high density single family development under the parameters of the R-3
Zoning District but later uses the lots for the placement of manufactured homes. This
would be a right of use and therefore permissible. It is the recommendation of staff to
retain the R-3 Zoning District as is and amend a different zoning district should the path
of amending an existing district be desired.

• Many ordinances distinguish between manufactured housing and modular housing
(factory built using North Carolina Building Code). Modular units are often treated as
site built homes for zoning purposes. This is the case within the Town of Weaverville as
well.

• R-1 is presently the only zoning district in which the primary use of properties is for
single family homes. Meaning, amendments to R-2, R-3 and R-12 for the purpose of
accommodating high density single family homes, special consideration should be given
to the additional square footage required for subsequent dwelling units given that each
of these district accommodate multifamily housing.

• Statutory limitations also dictate that a family care home, defined as an assisted living
residence in which the housing management provides 24-hour scheduled and

83



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

Page 6 of 6 

unscheduled personal care services for not more than six unrelated residents, must be 
treated the same as a single family home. A new district created to accommodate high 
density single family residential uses must also permit as a right of use family care 
homes under state law, “if 6 or fewer disabled persons, must treat same as single family 
residence” and federal law, “reasonable accommodation.” 

84



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: September 16, 2019 

SUBJECT: Participation in a Water Regionalization Feasibility Study 

PRESENTER: Public Works Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Letter of Support and Participation 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town Manager and Public Works Director recently met with representatives of 
the Towns of Mars Hill and Marshall concerning water as a regional resource. They 
would like for the three municipalities to engage in a joint study regarding 
individual water supplies and possible regionalization of this resource. Mars Hill has 
offered to take the lead in applying for a grant to fund such a study but needs letters 
of support from Weaverville and Marshall prior to the grant application deadline of 
September 30th.  

The Town’s participation in the study is recommended as the Town is recognized as 
a major player in the provision of water in the region.  A draft letter of participation 
is attached and states that that “we commit our willingness to cooperate to the 
extent necessary to perform a regionalization feasibility study for the purposes of 
ensuring regional water security for all systems involved.”  It is important to note 
that participation in the study does not bind the Town to take any action that might 
ultimately be recommended in the study, and that is clearly reflected in the draft 
letter.    

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is asked to consider supporting the grant application and 
participation in the feasibility study and authorizing the Town Manager to submit 
the attached letter of support and participation for inclusion in the grant 
application.  

85



The Town of 
 Weaverville

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A  

30 South Main Street • Weaverville, NC 28787 (PO Box 338) 
(828) 645-7116 • Fax (828) 645-4776

www.weavervillenc.org

September 17, 2019 

Jon Risgaard, SRF Section Chief 
NC Department of Environmental Quality 
Division of Water Infrastructure 
1633 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1633 

Re: Town of Mars Hill – Water Regionalization Feasibility Study 

Dear Mr. Risgaard: 

The Town of Weaverville acknowledges the Town of Mars Hill’s request to participate in a 
merger/regionalization feasibility study which will include the Town of Marshall, the Town 
of Mars Hill, and the Town of Weaverville. By submittal of this letter, we commit our 
willingness to cooperate to the extent necessary to perform a regionalization feasibility 
study for the purposes of ensuring regional water security for all systems involved. It is 
expressly understood that our collaboration in this study does not bind us to take action on 
any recommendation made as a result of the study. 

We appreciate the opportunity to support the application in favor of a study. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 

enclosures as stated 

cc: Dale Pennell, Public Works Director 

86

http://www.weavervillenc.org/
http://www.weavervillenc.org/


87



88



89



90



91



92


	August 19 2019 -Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report for 9-9-19
	Tax Releases - September 2019
	Ratification of Road Closure Ordinance for Art in Autumn - September 2019
	Set PH Rezoning Unaddressed Merrimon Avenue
	Set PH Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for Unaddressed Monticello
	Budget Amendment Form - Pink Patch Project 9-16-19
	Approval of Temporary Construction Easements for Waterline Ext Project - September 2019
	Ratification of Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement - Fire Departments and First Due Size-Up Program - September 2019
	Update on High Density Single Family Residential Development - September 2019
	Participation in Water Regionalization Feasibility Study
	Rezoning for Unaddressed Merrimon.pdf
	Rezoning for Unaddressed Merrimon.pdf
	TOW rezoning submittal 081919.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Rezoning.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Staff Report.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Staff Report - Admin.pdf
	Plan Consistency Review Checklist - Unaddressed Merrimon.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Staff Report - FD.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Staff Report - PD.pdf
	Unaddressed Merrimon Staff Report - PW.pdf


	Update on High Density Single Family Residential Development - September 2019.pdf
	Update on High Density Single Family Residential Development - September 2019.pdf
	Staff Report - HD SFR.pdf




